
 

 

 
 
 
 

Licensing Committee 
 
 
 

Thursday 24 March 2016 at 10.00 am 

 
To be held at at the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend for Items 6 and 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillors David Barker, Nikki Bond, Jack Clarkson, Neale Gibson, Dianne Hurst, 
George Lindars-Hammond, Roy Munn, Anne Murphy, Josie Paszek, 
Vickie Priestley, Denise Reaney, Geoff Smith, Zoe Sykes and Cliff Woodcraft 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Licensing Committee carries out a statutory licensing role, including licensing for 
taxis and public entertainment.  
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.   
 
You may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Recording is allowed at Licensing Committee meetings under the direction of the 
Chair of the meeting.  Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for 
details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording and photography at council 
meetings. 
 
If you would like to attend the meeting please report to the First Point Reception 
desk where you will be directed to the meeting room. 
 
If you require any further information please contact Harry Clarke on 0114 273 6183 
or email harry.clarke@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 



 

 

 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA 
24 MARCH 2016 

 
Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements 

 
2. Apologies for Absence 
 
3. Exclusion of Public and Press 
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 

and public 
 
4. Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting. 
 
5. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing - Individual Case* 
 Report of the Chief Licensing Officer 

 
*(NOTE: The report for this item is not available to the public and press 
because it contains exempt information described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)) 

 
6. Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 To approve the minutes of the meetings held on:-  

 
25 January 2016 
26 January 2016 
2 February 2016 
9 February 2016 
16 February 2016 

 
7. Review of Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence Limitation Policy - 

Intention to Undertake Unmet Demand Survey 
 Report of the Chief Licensing Officer 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 2

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

Page 5

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Meeting held 25 January 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Geoff Smith (Chair), Denise Reaney and Zoe Sykes 

 
 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 No apologies for absence were received.  Councillor Jack Clarkson attended the 
meeting as a reserve Member, but was not required to stay. 

 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.  
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 - PREMIER STORES, 28-30 BALLIFIELD DRIVE, 
SHEFFIELD, S13 9HS 
 

4.1 The Chief Licensing Officer submitted a report to consider an application made by 
South Yorkshire Police, under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, for a review of 
the Premises Licence in respect of the premises known as Premier Stores, 28-30 
Ballifield Drive, Sheffield, S13 9HS. 

  
4.2 Present at the meeting were Inspector Jason Booth, Benita Mumby and Cheryl 

Topham (South Yorkshire Police, Applicants), Julie Hague (Sheffield Safeguarding 
Children Board), Hardeep Matto (Premises Licence Holder), Jugdeep Singh 
(Designated Premises Supervisor), Jayne Gough and Shelley Marshall (Licensing 
Enforcement and Technical Officers), Marie-Claire Frankie (Solicitor to the Sub-
Committee) and John Turner (Democratic Services). 

  
4.3 Marie-Claire Frankie outlined the procedure which would be followed during the 

hearing. 
  
4.4 Jayne Gough presented the report to the Sub-Committee and it was noted that 

representations had been received from the Sheffield Safeguarding Children Board 
(SSCB), and were attached at Appendix ‘B’ to the report. Ms Gough also made 
reference to additional evidence provided by Cheryl Topham, which had been 
circulated prior to the meeting. 

  
4.5 Cheryl Topham, on behalf of South Yorkshire Police, stated that the review had 

been prompted by three failed test purchases in a 12-month period from 27th 
November 2014 to 4th November 2015.  Whilst the police acknowledged that staff 
at the store had passed three test purchases in the same period, based on the 

Agenda Item 6

Page 19



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 25.01.2016 

Page 2 of 6 
 

results of the test purchases undertaken, it meant that a young person could go 
into the shop and had a 50% chance of being served with alcohol.  In addition to 
this, two of the failed test purchases had been made by the same shop assistant.  
During the period in question, there had also been visits made by the police and 
the SSCB, to give advice to the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS), in order to 
improve the situation.  The DPS had also sent several members of staff on training 
courses to improve their knowledge, and one staff member still sold to an under-
aged person after the training.  Ms Topham stated that the police also had 
concerns that one of the conditions of the Premises Licence was being breached, 
namely Condition 9 – ‘The holder of a Personal Licence to remain on the premises 
at all times that the premises are open and alcohol sold’.  When visiting the 
premises on 7th January 2016, the DPS informed Ms Topham that the Personal 
Licence Holder was not present at the premises all the time, therefore this 
condition was not being met.  It was appreciated that this may prove difficult due to 
the long hours the store was open, and when alcohol was being sold, and the 
police had therefore suggested that there was either a need for more Personal 
Licence Holders or a reduction in the number of hours in terms of the sale of 
alcohol.  Ms Topham concluded by stating that in order to comply with the licensing 
objectives, in particular the protection of children from harm, and the Premises 
Licence Holder’s licence conditions, the shop needed to tighten its operations. 

  
4.6 In response to questions from Members of, and the Solicitor to, the Sub-

Committee, and the Premises Licence Holder, Ms Topham stated that, in terms of 
the test purchases, it appeared as though the management would take action and 
listen to advice after a failed test then, after a period of time, standards would slip 
again.  It was believed that the condition requiring the holder of a Personal Licence 
to remain on the premises at all times that the premises were open and alcohol 
sold, had been put on the Premises Licence due to the fact that the store was 
located very close to a secondary school.  It was considered that having a 
Personal Licence Holder present at all times would provide extra security and 
support for the shop assistants, particularly if they were faced with any trouble.  
Whilst the police did not consider that all public nuisance in the area was caused 
by young people hanging around the store, there were concerns that if the young 
people were able to purchase alcohol themselves, or get someone else to buy it for 
them, this would increase the potential for public nuisance.  It was pointed out that, 
when the police and Julie Hague visited the store, on 7th January, 2016, there were 
approximately 30 young people hanging around outside which, whilst they were not 
causing any trouble, appeared quite intimidating.  During school term-time, the 
management operated a system whereby only two school-children were allowed in 
the shop at any one time and, instead of them having to queue at the counter with 
regular customers, a member of staff would stand by the door, with a float in a tin, 
and the children would pay the staff member for the goods purchased when 
leaving the shop.  This system meant the children would be in and out of the shop 
much quicker, and was only generally used on school days, and when low-priced 
goods were being purchased.  It was confirmed that following the attendance of a 
number of members of staff from the shop at a multi-agency training course, led by 
Julie Hague, SSCB, on 14th October 2015, the store failed a test purchase shortly 
after this, on 4th November 2015.  The test purchases undertaken at the store were 
carried out as part of a routine check, as had been carried out at a number of other 
licensed premises in the area, and not based on any evidence in terms of problems 

Page 20



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 25.01.2016 

Page 3 of 6 
 

at the store.  The young people used by the police to carry out the test purchases 
were all volunteers and aged either 15 or 16, and whilst it was appreciated that 
they could look older than they were, it was unlikely that they would look older than 
21.  The police had suggested that management change from operating Challenge 
21 to Challenge 25 as this was one of the management systems which could be 
changed, with relative ease, and which would enable the premises to remain open. 

  
4.7 Julie Hague, representing the Sheffield Safeguarding Children Board (SSCB), 

stated that the Board’s representations focused on the licensing objective – the 
protection of children from harm.  The main reason for the representations was that 
the premises had been evidenced to operate in a way that had put children at risk, 
and undermined the core objective for the protection of children from harm.  Ms 
Hague stated that the evidence submitted by South Yorkshire Police demonstrated 
that alcohol had been sold to children at the premises on three occasions within a 
12-month period, and that the Board took a serious view on this.  The Board 
routinely offered training sessions to people in the licensed trade to ensure that 
they were fully aware of the risks associated with underage sales and that 
Designated Premises Supervisors (DPSs), licence holders and their staff were able 
to manage risk for the prevention of harm to children.  In November 2014, the 
Board was informed by the police that the premises had failed a test purchase 
operation, resulting in a 15-year old child buying lager from the store.  In response, 
free training places were offered to the licence holder, which resulted in two 
members of staff attending the training on 4th February 2015.  In March 2015, the 
Board was again notified by the police that another 15-year old child had been able 
to buy alcohol during a test purchase operation at the shop.  Again, this resulted in 
the Board offering further free training places.  However, no staff from the store 
attended the training that took place on 15th April 2015.  In September 2015, the 
licence holder, Mr Hardeep Singh Matto, contacted the Board, requesting seven 
places on the next available training course.  These were provided, and on 14th 
October 2015, six members of staff attended the training.  The training provided in 
response to failed test purchase operations or other complaints was a strategy 
agreed by the police, the SSCB and Trading Standards, the aim of which was to 
engage retailers in partnership to support them to improve their operation to make 
it safe and compliant with the law.  The training provided information about the law 
in relation to children and alcohol, how an operator could prevent underage sales 
and on the impact of underage drinking on children, young people and the local 
community.   

  
4.8 Ms Hague stated that it was with some disappointment therefore, that despite Mr 

Matto’s apparent willingness to send staff on the training course, there was 
evidence of a ‘hit and miss’ trend in the enforcement of the due diligence systems 
to prevent underage sales.  On 7th November 2015, the Board was notified by the 
police that a 15 year old child had bought alcohol from the premises during a test 
purchase operation undertaken on 4th November 2015.  She stated that, although 
the Board had been working with Mr Matto since 2012, and that he had always 
been positive and approachable, there were still serious concerns in terms of the 
management systems operating at the store.  Ms Hague made specific reference 
to an unannounced visit she had made to the store, with the police, on 7th January 
2016, where they saw around 30 school children outside the shop, and indicated 
that the shop obviously attracted high numbers of young people, therefore it would 

Page 21



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 25.01.2016 

Page 4 of 6 
 

be expected that the management would impose stricter controls.  Ms Hague 
concluded by stating that the Board considered that management could have done 
more, such as undertaking volunteer test purchases, in order to address the 
problems. 

  
4.9 In response to questions from Members of, and the Solicitor to, the Sub-

Committee, Julie Hague stated that it would be a simple operation for the 
management to change from Challenge 21 to Challenge 25, and that the Board 
would assist them, by providing advice and material and posters.  Whilst the Board 
and the police appreciated the reasons as to why the store only allowed two school 
children in the shop at any one time and why the school children paid for their 
goods, by handing their money to a shop assistant, who put it in a tin, as opposed 
to putting it through the till, they were not sure as to whether this constituted an 
offence, and stated that they considered that Trading Standards may have 
concerns as to this practice.  Whilst it was accepted that the store maintained a 
refusals log, and that it was being completed satisfactorily, there had been no 
detailed analysis of its contents.  The Board had only been aware of the fact that a 
holder of a Personal Licence had not been present at the premises at all times they 
were open and when alcohol was being sold following the visit on 7th January 
2016.  On this occasion, the DPS was present, and was advised that it may help if 
more members of staff were trained up to become Personal Licence Holders.  The 
three passes in terms of the test purchases took place during early evening.   

  
4.10 Hardeep Matto and Jugdeep Singh put forward the case on behalf of the store, 

indicating that it was a convenience store, and well used by the local community 
and children from the nearby school.  It was reported that there had been problems 
in the past with young people hanging around outside the store but, following the 
work of the management, in conjunction with the police, there were now little or no 
problem in terms of public nuisance.  It was accepted that a lot of school children 
visited and sometimes hung around outside, after leaving school, but they soon 
moved on.  They stressed that, as well as the failed test purchases, there had also 
been three passes during the 12-month period, and that the member of staff who 
had failed two of the test purchases had subsequently been dismissed as a result 
of her actions.  It was pointed out that the holder of a Personal Licence was 
present on the premises for the majority of the time the shop was open, and 
alcohol was being sold, but that he was sometimess forced to leave the premises.  
As there was only one holder of a Personal Licence, they stated that they would 
ensure that more members of staff should attend the training to gain a Personal 
Licence.  Mr Matto concluded by stating that whilst they accept that they had made 
some mistakes, they were always willing to co-operate with the SSCB and the 
police and listen to their advice. 

  
4.11 In response to questions from Members of, and the Solicitor to, the Sub-

Committee, Jayne Gough and Cheryl Topham, Mr Matto explained that he did not 
think to question the meaning behind the condition requiring there to be a DPS on 
site at all times, as this condition was added at a previous meeting of the Licensing 
sub-Committee, along with other conditions in Annex 3 of the Premises Licence. 
He stated that he had been advised by the police that he could complete an 
Authorisation List, ensuring all staff sign it to enable them to sell alcohol in the 
absence of the PLH, and assumed that this would be enough. Ms Gough also 

Page 22



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 25.01.2016 

Page 5 of 6 
 

highlighted issues identified on previous licensing visits, that highlighted the fact 
that the Authorisation List and refusals log had not been maintained and therefore, 
this requirement was still not being met. Mr Singh stated that he was also the DPS 
at his other premises, and split his time between both.  The management planned 
to send a number of members of staff on the Personal Licence training course and, 
with regard to the suggested change from Challenge 21 to Challenge 25, whilst the 
staff had been informed of the proposed change, they had not yet got all the 
relevant material and posters.  The other member of staff who failed a test 
purchase had received appropriate training, and had subsequently passed a test 
purchase.  In addition to the Premises Licence Holder and the DPS, there were six 
other members of staff, who all worked part-time, and who were allocated shifts at 
different times of the day and night.  There was no condition on the Premises 
Licence in respect of Mr Matto’s other store requiring a holder of a Personal 
Licence to remain on the premises at all times that they were open, and alcohol 
sold.  Either Mr Matto or Mr Singh were on the premises at all times the shop was 
open, with each doing one shift from 6.00 am to 2.00 pm and 2.00 pm to 10.00 pm.  
If one of them was on holiday, or ill for a period of time, the other one would fill in 
and, if for some reason one of them had to leave the store, they would either go 
during a quiet period during the day or send another member of staff.  Jayne 
Gough confirmed that they shouldn’t have to wait any more than two months until 
there was a Personal Licence Holder training course.  It was accepted by 
management that they would have received a Determination Notice following the 
hearing of the Licensing Sub-Committee on 3rd November 2009, which considered 
a variation of the Premises Licence, specifically setting out conditions regarding the 
requirement for a holder of a Personal Licence to be present on the premises the 
age verification scheme, but they did not have a full understanding of all the 
conditions at that time, and they only became clear following subsequent meetings 
with Licensing staff.  The member of staff who failed two test purchases was 
dismissed shortly after Julie Hague and the police had visited the premises on 7th 
January 2016.  The till prompt in respect of the Challenge 21 scheme simply 
indicated ‘check ID’.   

  
4.12 Cheryl Topham and Julie Hague provided brief summaries of their case and 

Hardeep Matto indicated that he had nothing further to add. 
  
4.13 RESOLVED: That the public and press and attendees involved in the application 

be excluded from the meeting before further discussion takes place on the grounds 
that, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, if those persons were 
present, there would be a disclosure to them of exempt information as described in 
paragraph 5 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 

  
4.14 Marie-Claire Frankie reported orally, giving legal advice on various aspects of the 

application. 
  
4.15 At this stage in the proceedings, the meeting was re-opened to the public and 

press and attendees. 
  
4.16 RESOLVED: That, in the light of the information contained in the report now 

submitted, the additional information now circulated and the representations now 
made, the Sub-Committee agrees to modify the conditions of the Premises 

Page 23



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 25.01.2016 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Licence, in respect of the premises known as Premier Stores, 28-30 Ballifield 
Road, Sheffield, S13 9HS, as follows:- 

  
 (a) the removal of No. 6; 
  
 (b) the removal of Nos. 7 and 8, and replaced by a new No. 6, as follows  – 

‘The Challenge 25 Proof of Age Scheme promoted by the Government must 
be operated at all times at the premises and must include the use of a 
refusals log”;  

  
 (c)    the addition of a new No. 7, as follows – “All staff to receive training on 

underage and proxy sales, with the training to be in a written format, and to 
the satisfaction of the Sheffield Safeguarding Children Board, with induction 
training to be provided for all new staff and monthly refresher training for 
existing staff, and that written records, to be signed and dated by all staff 
undertaking the training, are to be maintained and made available for 
inspection to officers on request’; and 

  
 (d) No. 10 – to be renumbered No. 8 – be amended by the removal of all the 

words after ‘installed’. 
  
 (The full reasons for the Sub-Committee’s decision will be included in the written 

Notice of Determination.) 
 

 

Page 24



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Meeting held 26 January 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors David Barker (Chair), Anne Murphy and Cliff Woodcraft 

 
 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Zoé Sykes. 
 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.  
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 - HK OFF LICENCE AND MINI MARKET, 66 CROOKES, 
SHEFFIELD S10 1UG 
 

4.1 The Chief Licensing Officer submitted a report to consider an application made by 
Sheffield Trading Standards, under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003, for a 
review of the Premises Licence in respect of the premises known as HK Off 
Licence and Mini Market, 66 Crookes, Sheffield S10 1UG. 

  
4.2 Present at the meeting were David Palmer and John Maher (Sheffield Trading 

Standards, Applicants), Benita Mumby and Cheryl Topham (South Yorkshire 
Police), Julie Hague (Sheffield Safeguarding Children’s Board Manager), Srinivas 
Vangol (Premises Licence Holder), Eamonn Ward (Green Party, observer), Elaine 
Kaisi (parent) and Dan Hobson (Press), Shelley Marshall (Licensing Enforcement 
and Technical Officer), Paul Barber (Solicitor to the Sub-Committee), Samantha 
Bond (Professional Officer, Legal Services) and Jennie Skiba (Democratic 
Services). 

  
4.3 Paul Barber outlined the procedure which would be followed during the hearing. 
  
4.4 Shelley Marshall presented the report to the Sub-Committee and it was noted that 

representations had been received from the Sheffield Safeguarding Children’s 
Board, South Yorkshire Police and one local resident, and were attached at 
Appendix B to the report. 

  
4.5 David Palmer stated that there were various facets to this application and that 

sometime during July, 2015, a 15 year old boy had visited the premises and had 
purchased a bottle of Glen’s vodka.  The boy had returned to the store on 9th 
August, 2015 and again had purchased a bottle of 40% ABV strength vodka.  The 
boy then shared the vodka with his 16 year old friend who, as a result of drinking 

Page 25



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 26.01.2016 

Page 2 of 5 
 

the vodka was taken to A&E. 
  
4.6 David Palmer then outlined some history with regard to these premises.  He 

stated that in December 2014, a joint Trading Standards and Police operation had 
been carried out when they had visited the premises of all known sellers of Novel 
Psychoactive Substances (NPS or “legal highs”) which included HK Off Licence.  
He added that the traders were given verbal and written advice, stating that such 
products were likely to be dangerous and that their supply could be illegal.  Mr. 
Palmer stated that he had revisited the premises in February, 2015 and found 20 
bags of the substance, along with an amount of “button bags” which were 
subsequently seized.  Bottles of gin were also found on the premises which had 
no duty paid label displayed and these were also seized. The owner was served 
with a written warning regarding the NPS and on the 22nd May, 2015 was given a 
caution regarding the illegal gin. 

  
4.7 John Maher stated that on 11th August, 2015, he had received a complaint from 

the family of a 16 year old who told him that a friend of their son had obtained a 
bottle of Russian vodka from HK Off Licence and that as a result of sharing the 
vodka, the 16 year old was taken ill and admitted to hospital later that day.  He 
added that there was a need to establish whether the vodka was illegal or 
counterfeit and the child had been harmed by the vodka alone.  The child’s family 
also stated that the 15 year old had been able to obtain alcohol at some time 
during July. 

  
4.8 John Maher stated that following the complaint, on 20th August, 2015, a joint 

agency visit to the store was made by PC Young, Julie Hague and himself and it 
was found that there was failure to comply with various licensing conditions.  PC 
Young asked to see CCTV footage during July and August.  As background 
information as to the nature of the premises, Mr. Maher informed the Sub-
Committee that the premises was a small corner shop where over 50% of the 
products on display was either alcohol or tobacco products.  He added that 
outside the shop, one Challenge 25 poster and a poster stating what was 
considered to be valid I.D. were displayed, but other than that there was nothing 
else displayed inside the shop.  Mr. Maher stated that PC Young had looked at 
the CCTV footage and searched for the relevant days. 

  
4.9 At this point, John Maher showed the CCTV footage from 9th August to the Sub-

Committee.  He went on to read through a statement he had obtained from  the 15 
year old boy who said that when Mr. Vangol had asked him for I.D., the boy had 
told him he did not have any I.D. on him and gave him a false date of birth.  The 
boy gave Mr.Vangol £14 and left the shop, only to return later in the day to 
purchase some more alcohol. 

  
4.10 In response to questions from members of the Sub-Committee, John Maher 

stated that he had been unable to obtain CCTV footage from July and that there 
was no way of knowing whether the vodka had been counterfeit or not.  He further 
stated that Mr. Vangol had told Trading Standards officers that some of the 
alcohol available in his shop had been purchased from Bargain Booze and local 
supermarkets.  When asked if he thought the boy he had interviewed had looked 
over 25, Mr. Maher stated that he thought the boy looked on the cusp of 18 or 

Page 26



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 26.01.2016 

Page 3 of 5 
 

younger and that he had travelled from outside the Crookes area to visit the shop. 
  
4.11 Julie Hague stated that during the 11 years of her dealing with cases of this 

nature, it is the first time she has known children to have been harmed.  She 
further stated that she had visited these premises on a number of occasions 
during the past two years, following information received from drugs workers in 
the City who stated that the legal highs could be obtained from the premises.  
Julie Hague stated that despite repeated advice and training offers, all of which 
had been declined, Mr. Vangol had failed to operate in a safe, responsible and 
compliant way.  

  
4.12 Julie Hague informed the Sub-Committee that a significant amount of resources 

had been spent outlining the risks of dangerous substances such as alcohol and 
legal highs. She stated that, following training where the risks had been pointed 
out, some businesses had stopped selling legal highs altogether.  She added that 
the licence holder had always maintained that he did not sell dangerous 
substances to children. 

  
4.13 Julie Hague stated that following a visit to the shop in February, 2015, 20 bags of 

legal highs had been found in the pockets of the licence holder and had 
subsequently been removed from the premises. 

  
4.14 Julie Hague further stated that, following the report of a serious incident in which a 

young person had been hospitalised, she attended the premises on 20th August, 
2015 along with PC Young and John Maher to inspect the CCTV and age 
verification system.  During such visit she observed there was inadequate age 
verification signage and no staff training records. 

  
4.15 Julie Hague went on to say that on 19th October, 2015 she and Mr. Maher 

attended a meeting with the child who had been involved in the two incidents of 
underage sales.  She said that the child confirmed that he had purchased the 
alcohol on both occasions and that whilst he had been asked his age, he had not 
been pressed into providing ID and that it was not difficult to purchase alcohol.  
Julie Hague then referred to another incident which had been reported to the 
Police whereby two boys aged 14 and 15 had purchased alcohol to the value of 
£50 from HK Off Licence.  They had taken the alcohol to a party where fighting 
had broken out and the Police and an ambulance were called.  Both boys were 
hospitalised after consuming alcohol. 

  
4.16 Finally, Julie Hague stated that since 2011 there has been a number of owners 

and the premises has acquired a reputation for underage sales and that the 
transfer of the business would be unlikely to make a difference. 

  
4.17 Cheryl Topham stated that on 16th February, 2015, she had visited the premises 

following intelligence received regarding the sale of legal highs.  20 packets of the 
substance were concealed by the owner and these were seized along with four 
bottles of gin with counterfeit labels suspected of being non-duty paid on them.  
Cheryl Topham further stated that, although there were other similar shops in the 
area, children were known to pass them with the knowledge that they would be 
able to buy whatever they wanted at HK Off Licence. 

Page 27



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 26.01.2016 

Page 4 of 5 
 

  
4.18 Cheryl Topham referred to the incident at a party on 20th November, 2015 when 

two children had been hospitalised due to drinking alcohol which she learned at a 
later date, had been purchased from HK Off Licence.  Cheryl Topham stated that 
on 9th December, she visited the premises for the sole purpose of viewing and 
downloading his CCTV footage from 20th November.  Mr. Vangol told her that the 
equipment had been broken for approximately three weeks and did not have the 
footage from 20th November.  Ms. Topham further stated that she informed Mr. 
Vangol that he was in breach of his licence conditions and that upon her return, if 
the equipment was not fixed, he would be served with a Section 19 closure notice. 
Ms. Topham said that on her return two days later, the CCTV was fixed but feels 
that if Mr. Vangol had not been made aware of the Section 19 notice, he would not 
have got the equipment mended. 

  
4.19 In response to questions from members of the Sub-Committee, Cheryl Topham 

said that she believed four children had put money together to buy £50 worth of 
alcohol to take to the party which had resulted in two of the children being 
hospitalised and that it was rare for parents to contact the police when their 
children have been involved with alcohol or drug use. 

  
4.20 In response to questions from members of the Sub-Committee, Mr. Vangol stated 

that he runs the business single-handed and has no time to attend any training 
offered, but is aware of all the issues surrounding underage sales of alcohol and 
the dangers of legal highs.  Mr. Vangol referred to the CCTV footage on 9th 
August and stated that quite clearly Members could see that he asked the boy for 
his I.D. several times and then asked for his date of birth, which he checked using 
a calculator.  Mr. Vangol then admitted that he had made a mistake in serving the 
child and not insisting on proper I.D., but he produced the refusals book from the 
premises which showed he does record attempted underage sales.  Mr. Vangol 
then suggested that some children had obtained alcohol from his premises by 
proxy, i.e. asking an adult to buy alcohol on their behalf.  Mr. Vangol informed the 
Sub-Committee that, since the incident in February when he had been found to 
have 20 bags of legal highs hidden in his clothing, he no longer sold them.  Mr. 
Vangol also stated that he was aware that the shop had a reputation of selling 
alcohol to children, but he was trying to change that reputation in order to sell the 
business. 

  
4.21 Mr. Vangol said that he had carried on selling the legal highs after he had been 

made aware of their dangers, because he would have been out of pocket had he 
destroyed them.  He also added that had had purchased alcohol from other 
outlets when there had been offers available.  Mr. Vangol summed up by saying 
that he was not a bad person and that he had made a couple of mistakes and was 
hoping that the Sub-Committee would give him a chance. 

  
4.22 David Palmer, Julie Hague and Cheryl Topham summarised their cases. 
  
4.23 RESOLVED: That the public and press and attendees involved in the application 

be excluded from the meeting before further discussion takes place on the 
grounds that, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, if those 
persons were present, there would be a disclosure to them of exempt information 

Page 28



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 26.01.2016 

Page 5 of 5 
 

as described in paragraph 5 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, 
as amended. 

  
4.24 Paul Barber reported orally, giving legal advice on various aspects of the 

application. 
  
4.25 At this stage in the proceedings, the meeting was re-opened to the public and 

press and attendees. 
  
4.26 RESOLVED: That, in the light of the information contained in the report now 

submitted, the additional information now circulated and the representations now 
made, the Sub-Committee agrees to revoke the Premises Licences in respect of 
the premises known as HK Off Licence and Mini Market, 66 Crookes, Sheffield 
S10 1UG for the following reasons:- 

  
 (a) the nature of the breaches of the licensing objectives, conditions and 

criminal law were deliberate, the lack of training and poor management of 
CCTV system; and 

  
 (b) the owner had failed to demonstrate due diligence for the protection of 

children from harm and the prevention of crime and disorder and public 
safety under the Licensing Act 2003. 

  
 (The full reasons for the Sub-Committee’s decision will be included in the written 

Notice of Determination.) 
 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Meeting held 2 February 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors David Barker (Chair), Vickie Priestley and Zoe Sykes 

 
 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 No apologies for absence were received.  Councillor Jack Clarkson attended the 
meeting as a reserve Member, but was not required to stay. 

 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 RESOLVED: That the public and press be excluded from the meeting before 
discussion takes place on item 4 on the grounds that, if the public and press were 
present during the transaction of such business, there would be a disclosure to 
them of exempt information as described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.  
 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING - INDIVIDUAL CASES 
 

4.1 The Chief Licensing Officer submitted details in respect of four cases relating to 
hackney carriage and private hire licensing. 

  
4.2 The applicant in Case No. 06/16 attended the hearing with a representative and 

they both addressed the Sub-Committee. 
  
4.3 The applicant in Case No. 07/16 attended the hearing with a representative and 

they both addressed the Sub-Committee. 
  
4.4 The applicant in Case No. 08/16 attended the hearing with a representative and 

they both addressed the Sub-Committee. 
  
4.5 The applicant in Case No. 09/16 attended the hearing with a representative and 

they both addressed the Sub-Committee. 
  
4.6 RESOLVED: That the cases now submitted be determined as follows:- 
  
 Case No. Licence Type Decision 
    
 06/16 Application to renew 

a Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence 

Refuse to grant a licence in the light of the 
circumstances of the case, the information 
now reported, the responses to the questions 
raised and in accordance with the Council’s 

Page 31



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 2.02.2016 

Page 2 of 2 
 

policy on plying for hire. 
    
 07/16 Application to renew 

a Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence 

Refuse to grant a licence in the light of the 
circumstances of the case, the information 
now reported, the responses to the questions 
raised and in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on plying for hire. 

    
 08/16 Application to renew 

a Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence 

Refuse to grant a licence in the light of the 
circumstances of the case, the information 
now reported, the responses to the questions 
raised and in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on plying for hire. 

    
 09/16 Application to renew 

a Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence 

(a) Grant a licence for up to the maximum 
term of 24 months, as requested by the 
applicant and (b) the applicant be given a 
written warning as to his future conduct, to 
remain on his licence for the full term of the 
licence granted. 

 
 

 

Page 32



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Meeting held 9 February 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Geoff Smith (Chair), George Lindars-Hammond and 

Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 No apologies for absence were received. Councillor Neale Gibson attended the 
meeting as a reserve Member, but was not required to stay. 

 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 RESOLVED: That the public and press be excluded from the meeting before 
discussion takes place on item 4 on the grounds that, if the public and press were 
present during the transaction of such business, there would be a disclosure to 
them of exempt information as described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.  
 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING - INDIVIDUAL CASES 
 

4.1 The Chief Licensing Officer submitted details in respect of three cases relating to 
hackney carriage and private hire licensing. 

  
4.2 The applicant in Case No. 10/16 attended the hearing with a representative and 

they both addressed the Sub-Committee. 
  
4.3 The applicant in Case No. 11/16 attended the hearing with a representative and 

they both addressed the Sub-Committee. 
  
4.4 The applicant in Case No. 12/16 attended the hearing and addressed the Sub-

Committee. 
  
4.5 RESOLVED: That the cases now submitted be determined as follows:- 
  
 Case No. Licence Type Decision 
    
 10/16 Application to renew a 

Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Driver’s Licence 

Grant a licence for the normal 
term of 36 months as requested, 
but the licence holder be issued 
with a warning as to his future 
conduct, particularly that he must 
declare any future convictions to 

Page 33



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 9.02.2016 

Page 2 of 2 
 

the Licensing Service and 
reminded that he must report any 
convictions to the Service within 
14 days, such warning to remain 
in place for the duration of the 
licence. 

    

 11/16 Application for a new Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence 

(a) Grant a licence for the shorter 
term of 12 months in the light of 
the offences and convictions now 
reported, subject to the applicant 
undergoing a quarterly drugs test 
with a reputable practitioner and 
submitting the results to the 
Licensing Service for their 
records and (b) the licence holder 
be issued with a written warning, 
that if he received any further 
convictions within 12 months, his 
licence would be referred back to 
this Sub-Committee. 

    
 12/16 Application for a first Hackney 

Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence 

Grant a licence for the normal 
term of 36 months, as requested. 

 

Page 34



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Meeting held 16 February 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors David Barker (Chair) and Neale Gibson 

 
 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 No apologies for absence were received. 
 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 RESOLVED: That the public and press be excluded from the meeting before 
discussion takes place on item 4 on the grounds that, if the public and press were 
present during the transaction of such business, there would be a disclosure to 
them of exempt information as described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.  
 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING - INDIVIDUAL CASES 
 

4.1 The Chief Licensing Officer submitted details in respect of four cases relating to 
hackney carriage and private hire licensing. 

  
4.2 The licence holder in Case No. 13/16 attended the hearing and addressed the 

Sub-Committee. 
  
4.3 The licence holder in Case No. 14/16 did not attend the hearing and the case was 

heard in his absence. 
  
4.4 The licence holder in Case No. 15/16 did not attend the hearing and the case was 

heard in his absence. 
  
4.5 The licence holder in Case No. 16/16 did not attend the hearing and the case was 

heard in his absence. 
  
4.6 RESOLVED: That the cases now submitted be determined as follows:- 
  
 Case No. Licence Type Decision 
    
 13/16 Review of a Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence 

In light of the additional evidence 
provided, the information 
contained in the report and the 
responses to the questions 
raised, the Sub-Committee 

Page 35



Meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee 16.02.2016 

Page 2 of 2 
 

decided to reinstate the licence, 
but the licence holder be given a 
written warning as to his future 
conduct, to remain on his licence 
until the end of his next licence. 

    
 14/16 Review of a Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence 

In accordance with the Council’s 
policy on plying for hire, 
immediately revoke the licence 
under Section 61 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, as 
amended by Section 52 of the 
Road Safety Act, 2006. 

    
 15/16 Review of a Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence 

In accordance with the Council’s 
policy on plying for hire, 
immediately revoke the licence 
under Section 61 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, as 
amended by Section 52 of the 
Road Safety Act, 2006. 

    
 16/16 Review of a Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence 

In accordance with the Council’s 
policy on plying for hire, 
immediately revoke the licence 
under Section 61 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, as 
amended by Section 52 of the 
Road Safety Act, 2006. 

 

Page 36



Agenda Item 7

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing - Individual Case*
	6 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	26 January
	2 February
	9 February
	16 February

	7 Review of Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence Limitation Policy - Intention to Undertake Unmet Demand Survey

